
 

WORK SESSION 

August 09, 2021 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are required for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Public Hearing for the proposed tax increase of 0.35% for the County-Wide Digest and the 
proposed tax increase of 0.30% for the Special Services Digest.  The millage rates remain 
the same as last year.  The County-Wide millage rate is 15.569 and the Special Services 
millage rate is 9.1730.  (Those wishing to speak for or against this item should sign the 
Sign Up sheet located on the table in the rear of the Chamber). 

4. Minutes. 

a. Minutes of the July 19th Regular Meeting and July 26th Work Session. 

5. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Walter Kelley, Library Board of Trustees Chairman is present to introduce Gail Evans 
as the new Library Director. 

b. Fire Chief/EMA Director Cedric D. Scott present to announce that Dougherty County 
has received the Storm Ready Community designation. 

c. Public Information Officer Wendy Howell present to discuss the proposed Citizen 
Engagement Dashboard. 

d. William Wright, dba Afram-Tech, Inc. present to continue discussion of building 
capacity, programs for small businesses, and other concerns.  

1



6. Zoning. 

a. Rupesh Rajkaran and Gupta Priyanka and Et. al, owner and Teramore Development, 
LLC, applicant requests to rezone 1.909 acres from C-7 (Mixed-Use Planned-
Development District) to C-2 (General Mixed-Use Business District). The property is 
located at the Southeast Corner of Gillionville and Lockett Station. The Planning 
Commission recommends approval.  Paul Forgey, Planning and Development 
Services Director and Angel Gray, Planning Manager, will address.  The Public 
Hearing and Action are scheduled for August 16, 2021. 

b. Southland Cypress, LLC, owner and Brenda Clark, applicant request to rezone 62.538 
acres from AG (Agricultural District) to R-G (Single-Family Residential District County 
Only). The property address is 512 Flowing Well Rd. The Planning Commission 
recommends approval.  Paul Forgey, Planning and Development Services Director 
and Angel Gray, Planning Manager, will address.  The Public Hearing and Action are 
scheduled for August 16, 2021. 

c. Grady Blair Stone, owner and Metro Site, LLC applicant request Special Approval to 
construct a new telecommunications tower with a total overall height of facility 315’ in 
the C-3 (Commercial) District & C-8 (Commercial Recreation District). The property is 
approximately 20.82 acres and the property address is 2700 Liberty Expressway. The 
Planning Commission recommends approval.  Paul Forgey, Planning and 
Development Services Director and Angel Gray Planning Manager, will address.  The 
Public Hearing and Action are scheduled for August 16, 2021. 

d. Proposed text amendment to the Dougherty County Solar Ordinance (TITLE III, 
ARTICLE 1. Section 1.44. VII. Specific Requirements for Solar Energy Systems (A) i). 
The Planning Commission recommends approval.  Paul Forgey, Planning and 
Development Services Director and Angel Gray, Planning Manager, will address.  The 
Public Hearing and Action are scheduled for August 16, 2021. 

7. Purchases. 

a. Recommendation to accept the proposal for Professional Services of the Survey and 
Design of Fleming Road Widening Phase III for the Public Works Department from the 
lowest quoted vendor, Reliable Engineering, LLC (Albany, GA) in the amount 
$69,000.  Two vendors provided proposals with the highest being $119,500.   Funding 
is budgeted in T-SPLOST Road Projects.  Assistant County Administrator  
Scott Addison will address.  Public Works Director Chuck Mathis and Engineering 
Manager Jeremy Brown are present. 

b. Recommendation to purchase twenty (20) sirens for use by the Dougherty County 
Emergency Management Agency from Sirens for Cities, Inc. (Jonesboro, GA) in the 
amount of $519,892.40.  Four proposals were received with Sirens for Cities, Inc. 
being recommended as the most responsive and responsible proposer.  Funding is 
budgeted in the Hazardous Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) for $750,000.  County 
Administrator Michael McCoy will address.  EMA Director Chief Cedric Scott, Director 
of Disaster Recovery & Grant Programs, Georgia Collier-Bolling and City of Albany 
Buyer Joshua Williams are present. 

  

2



8. Updates from the County Administrator. 

a. REMINDER: The public hearings regarding the proposed tax digest/millage rates will 
be this evening, August 9th at 6 p.m. and Monday, August 16th at 10 a.m. in Room 
100. 

9. Updates from the County Attorney. 

10. Updates from the County Commission. 

11. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

July 19, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty 

Government Center on July 19, 2021.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided.  

Commissioners present were Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, 

Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator  

Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney  

Spencer Lee, Deputy County Clerk Bristeria Hope, and other staff.  The public and 

representatives of the media participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on 

the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel. 

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, the Chairman called for approval of the 

June 21st Regular Meeting and June 28th Special Called Meeting minutes. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

minutes were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized Tax Director Shonna Josey and Chief Appraiser  

Joseph McPherson to discuss the Certified 2021 Tax Digest for the Countywide M&O and 

Special Services District.  Mrs. Josey shared that the Countywide M&O is based on the 2020 

millage rate of 15.569.  The net M&O digest assessed value is $2,011,965,474 with the total 

taxes levied plus PILOT at $33,619,058.  The total amount for the Forest Land Protection 

(FLPA) and PILOT are $2,294,769.  The 2021 total gross digest are $2,242,068,315 with a 

1.33% change.  The total net M&O had a total change of 0.34%.  The parcel count is 37,820.  

The timeline for the process and advertising was shared.   

 

Mrs. Josey discussed the Special Services District Tax Digest summary and stated that it is 

based on the 2020 millage rate of 9.173.  The net digest assessed value is $562,208,730 with 

the total taxes levied plus PILOT at $5,894,773.  The total amount for the FLPA & PILOT 

is $570,806.  The 2021 total gross digest is $662,153,910 with a 3.97% change.  The total 

net M&O had a total change of 2.67%.  The parcel count is 9,322.  The Chairman gathered 

consensus that from the Commission to maintain the millage rate at the 15.569 rates for the 

Countywide M&O and 9.173 for the Special Service District.  Commissioner Gaines asked 

Mrs. Josey to send her the presentation so that she could clarify that there would be a greater 

impact on the Special Services District. 

 

The Chairman recognized William Wright, representative of AFRAM Tech, Inc. who spoke 

on behalf of his concern with line item 9d on the agenda referencing the amendment of the 

budget. 

 

4

Item 4a.



The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the execution and 

acceptance of the contract to install Playground Equipment at Radium Overlook Park for the 

Public Works Department from the lowest quoted vendor, GameTime (Longwood, Fl) in the 

amount of $26,960.04 subject to execution by the County Administrator.  Funding is budgeted 

in SPLOST VII – County Parks Improvement/Equipment. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-038 is entitled:  

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY, GEORGIA AND GAMETIME IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$26,960.04 FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING PLAYGROUND 

EQUIPMENT AT RADIUM OVERLOOK PARK; REPEALING 

RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the board appointments. 

 

Upon nomination by Commissioner Johnson, incumbents  

Thelma Adams-Johnson and Larry Thomas were unanimously reappointed 

to the Albany/ Dougherty Land Bank for a two-year term ending July 31, 

2023.  

Upon nomination by Commissioner Gaines, incumbent Dr. Eugene Sherman 

was unanimously reappointed to the ASPIRE Behavioral Health & 

Developmental Disability Services Board for a three-year term ending  

June 30, 2024.   

Upon nomination by Commissioner Jones, incumbent Dr. Carolyn Hand was 

unanimously reappointed to the Department of Family & Children Services 

for a five-year term ending June 30, 2026.   

Upon nomination by Commissioner Johnson, incumbents Commissioner 

Clinton Johnson and Chris Hatcher were unanimously reappointed to the 

Economic Development Commission for a two-year term ending  

June 30, 2023.  [Commissioner Johnson will serve as the appointee of the 

Chairman]. 

Upon nomination by Commissioner Gray, applicant George Anderson was 

unanimously appointed to the Tax Assessors for an unexpired three-year term 

ending December 31, 2021.    

5

Item 4a.



Attorney Lee addressed and said that there is a resolution attached to the Tax Assessors 

appointment.  Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner 

Newsome, the motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-039 is entitled: 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE 

APPOINTMENT OF A MEMBER OF THE 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF TAX 

ASSESSORS TO POST 5 FOR AN UNEXPIRED 

TERM BEGINNING JULY 19, 2021 AND ENDING 

DECEMBER 31, 2023; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS 

OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring the listed vehicles and 

equipment as surplus and authorizing the sale of same via an online auction.   

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-040 is entitled:  

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE 

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES; 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME VIA 

AN ONLINE AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to approve the resolution declaring the listed 

equipment as surplus and authorize the disposal of same.  This is a listing of equipment 

damaged by water in the Judicial Building for the Sheriff's Office. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-041 is entitled:  

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE 

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF SAME 

REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

6

Item 4a.



 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for acceptance of the annual 

Cooperative Agreement with Turner Job Corps Center and Dougherty County outlining the 

assistance of the Dougherty County Police Department in performing law enforcement duties. 

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-042 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF AN ANNUAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA AND TURNER JOB 

CORPS CENTER OUTLINING THE ASSISTANCE OF THE 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT IN PERFORMING 

LAW ENFORCEMENT DUTIES AT THE TURNER JOB CORPS CENTER 

LOCATION; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

amend the FY 2022 Budget for the General Fund from $56,087,366 to $58,971,080 and to 

amend the FY 2022 Budget for the Special Services District from $8,192,540 to $8,598,902.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Mr. McCoy said that this was a good 

decision to address on behalf of the “hard-to-fill” positions that deal with life, safety and critical 

roles within Dougherty County.  He added that premium pay and the pay class study will be 

forthcoming and stressed that the initial increase is only for public safety.   Mr. McCoy said that 

the modified timeframe of the lump-sum distribution will be done in August 2021.  Chairman 

Cohilas corrected information from an earlier discussion of the tax digest and said that 

Commissioner Gaines was correct in referring to a greater impact in the Special Services 

District. 

 

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Commissioner Gray seconded the motion.  

Under discussion, Commissioner Jones said that he was excited about implementing the 

increase for the employees and hope to continue to provide increases.  He suggested that he 

would like to see a plan formulated to assist employees in receiving regular increases.  The 

motion for approval passed unanimously. 

 

Commissioner Gaines asked Mr. McCoy to provide a full briefing of the American Rescue Plan 

(ARP) to the Commission. Mr. McCoy said that ACCG will be providing training and extended 

the offer to the Commission to participate.  The Chairman asked Mr. McCoy to forward that 

information to the Commission. Mr. McCoy reiterated that he will come with a proposed 

spending project plan and utilization at end of the first quarter of the fiscal year, near the end of 

September.  Commissioner Gaines also mentioned that the COVID rates are decreasing and 

vaccinations are steadily increasing based on the percentages she analyzed.  

 

7

Item 4a.



Commissioner Newsome provided his appreciation to the Commissioners for helping him 

during his first budget cycle and looks forward to progressing more. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

11:20 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

8

Item 4a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

July 26, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on July 26, 2021.  Vice-Chairman Victor Edwards presided and called the meeting to order 

at 10:00 am.  Commissioners present were Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson,  

Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator Michael McCoy, 

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney Spencer Lee, County Clerk  

Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and representatives of the media participated in person, 

via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access 

channel.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas was absent. 

 

The Vice-Chairman asked Commissioner Jones to provide a word of prayer and asked the 

Commission to review the minutes of the July 12th Work Session Meeting.  

 

The Vice-Chairman recognized Senator Freddie Powell Sims to provide opening remarks.   

She introduced Frank Sheppard, President & CEO, Cheryl Maddox, Albany Site Manager and 

Shelby Williams, Business Manager from Feeding the Valley Food Bank who discussed the needs 

and grant opportunities available for the Local Food Bank.  It was shared that Dougherty County 

is ranked #2 in the state for food-insecure persons.  Site expansion plans were shared.  Mr. McCoy 

introduced Tommy Lowmon, EDFP Director, Office of Community Development, Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs who discussed the possible use of the Department of 

Community Affairs FY 2022 Community Development Block Grant- COVID (CDBG-CV) funds 

to expand local food bank services in Dougherty County and surrounding areas.  He mentioned 

that funds are provided by Congress through the CARES ACT.  He added that the local food bank 

is responsible for 25% of the grant match and shared that funds have been secured.  EDC Director 

Jana Dyke was available to also discuss grant opportunities. 

 

The Vice-Chairman recognized Director of Planning and Development Services Paul Forgey and 

County Attorney Spencer Lee to update the Commission on citizen concerns regarding businesses 

located on Poinciana Ave.  Attorney Lee shared that local and state regulations are being met and 

Mr. Forgey thanked citizen Paul Murray for bringing this concern to the Commission's attention.  

Mr. Forgey said that the business owner cooperated and when she started the business, the County 

had a different regulation.  Vice-Chairman Edwards asked that the business license state the type 

of business an individual has to prevent having this type of “slip up” again.  Upon the question of 

Commissioner Jones, Attorney Lee was not in favor of revisiting the ordinance because the 

presented concerns were addressed and activities inside the business are governed by the state.  

Mr. Forgey shared that all the ordinances can be made better but in this case for the training 

concern, a neighbor would have to report the issue.  Many areas have asked for a copy of our 

ordinance and Mr. Forgey believes it is in good order.  Mr. Murray thanked the Commission and 

presented other concerns.  Commissioner Gaines directed him to speak to his state representative 

and stated that the Board has exhausted all of our efforts to resolve concerns.   

 

9

Item 4a.



The Vice-Chairman recognized William Wright, dba Afram-Tech, Inc. to continue the discussion 

of building capacity, programs for small businesses, and other concerns.  He shared information 

pertaining to the high per capita cost of Dougherty County as compared to Chatham County.  He 

also spoke about concerns about the Coroner’s office.  He requested to speak to the Commission 

on August 9th, 16th, and 23rd.  

 

The Vice-Chairman recognized Coach Jessie Massey to provide an update on the 46th year of the 

Albany State Youth Enrichment Program noting that there was a recent program name change.  He 

thanked the Commission for the recent donation.  Tokens of appreciation were provided to the 

Board. 

 

The Vice-Chairman called for a discussion to accept the quote to install new cameras at Turtle 

Grove & Riverfront Parks for the Public Works Department from single-source vendor Invision 

Technologies (Albany, GA) in the amount of $22,110.  Funding is budgeted in  

SPLOST VII – County Parks Improvement/Equipment.  Assistant County Administrator  

Scott Addison addressed.  Public Works Engineer Jeremy Brown was present.  Mr. Addison said 

that the system will tie into the existing one and protect the County’s investment.  

 

The Vice-Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to purchase one 2021 Hyundai 

Santa Fe SEL for the GBI Southwestern Regional Drug Enforcement Office from Albany Chrysler 

Dodge Jeep Ram-Hyundai (Albany, GA) for a not to exceed the amount of $32,093.  Funding will 

be provided by the GBI SWRDEO Grant Fund.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison 

addressed.  Eric Schwalls, GBI Special Agent In Charge was present.  Mr. Addison said that this 

was a grant purchase that has been approved by GBI’s controlling Board.  However, the County 

has to give the authorization to proceed. 

 

The Vice-Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to accept the 2020-2025 Hazard 

Mitigation Plan.  Fire Chief/EMA Director Cedric D. Scott addressed.  Chief Scott said that the 

plan required an update every five years and required every county and municipality to receive 

federal funding.  Mr. McCoy stated that these documents allowed the County to continue being 

eligible for FEMA reimbursements.   

 

The Vice-Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to review and discuss a 

proposed Resolution providing for the use of the services of the Southwest Georgia Regional 

Commission for the purpose of preparing, submitting, and administering a FY 2022 Community 

Development Block Grant-COVID (CDBG-CV) Food Bank application to the State of Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs.  County Administrator Michael McCoy, SW Georgia Regional 

Commission Executive Director Suzanne Angell, Deputy Director Barbara Reddick, and Grants 

Administrator Brenda Wade addressed.  Mr. McCoy provided an update on the meeting held for 

the application process.  There is no Dougherty County staff available for management and it was 

recommended to partner with the SWGA Regional Commission.  Ms. Angell shared that her team 

is prepared to move forward.  She added that there is no cost for the application but there is funding 

available for grant administration.  Mr. McCoy shared that future documents will need approval.  

 

The Vice-Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to amend the FY 2021 General 

Fund Budget from $53,664,296 to $55,258,686 for various grants.  It was also recommended to 

10

Item 4a.



amend the Grants Fund from $1,980,748 to $2,038,756 to show the HEROS Grant and to create 

the Alternate Dispute Resolution Fund as requested by Superior Court Judge, Willie Lockette.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy and Finance Director Martha Hendley addressed.   

Mr. McCoy said that this request is administrative housekeeping because additional grants were 

received in the last FY budget.  Mrs. Hendley also addressed questions from the Commission.   

 

Commissioner Edwards asked Attorney Lee about the legality of businesses not allowing the 

public to use the restroom.  Attorney Lee will take it under advisement and provide information 

later.  Commissioner Johnson asked for clarification on the staffing ratio at the jail.  Commissioner 

Gray provided comments.  Mr. McCoy also noted that language was included in layman's terms 

to explain that the Board was not proposing a tax increase and language was published in the 

newspaper.  Commissioner Jones recognized Commissioner Johnson for his appointment on the 

Department of Community Affairs Board.  Commissioner Edwards recognized his campaign 

manager Captain Edward Lemon Jr. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

12:20 p.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

11

Item 4a.



12

Item 5d.



13

Item 5d.



14

Item 5d.



15

Item 5d.



16

Item 5d.



17

Item 5d.



18

Item 5d.



19

Item 5d.



20

Item 5d.



21

Item 5d.



22

Item 5d.



23

Item 5d.



24

Item 5d.



25

Item 5d.



26

Item 5d.



27

Item 5d.



28

Item 5d.



29

Item 5d.



30

Item 5d.



31

Item 5d.



32

Item 5d.



33

Item 5d.



34

Item 5d.



35

Item 5d.



36

Item 5d.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: August 5, 2021 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #21-034 Zoning (Southeast Corner of Gillionville and Locket Station) 

 
Teramore Development, LLC (21-034) has submitted an application on behalf of the 
owners to the Albany Dougherty Planning Commission requesting that the Official Zoning 
Map of Dougherty County be amended to rezone 1.909 acres from C-7 (Mixed-Use 
Planned-Development District) to C-2 (General Mixed-Use Business District). The 
property is located at the Southeast Corner of Gillionville and Lockett Station. The 
property owner is the RUPESH RAJKARAN & GUPTA PRIYANKA & ETAL; the applicant is 
Teramore Development, LLC. (WARD 5) 
 
 
Jimmy Hall offered a motion to recommend approval for the request to rezone 1.909 
acres from C-7 to C-2; seconded by Art Brown; the motion carried 9-0 with the 
following votes:  
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum 
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Yes 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes 
Aaron Johnson  Yes 
Charles Ochie  Yes 
Helen Young   Yes 
Heath Fountain   Yes 
 
 
 

37

Item 6a.



38

Item 6a.



39

Item 6a.



40

Item 6a.



41

Item 6a.



42

Item 6a.



43

Item 6a.



44

Item 6a.



45

Item 6a.



46

Item 6a.



47

Item 6a.



48

Item 6a.



49

Item 6a.



50

Item 6a.



51

Item 6a.



52

Item 6a.



53

Item 6a.



54

Item 6a.



55

Item 6a.



56

Item 6a.



57

Item 6a.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: August 5, 2021 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #21-035 Zoning (512 Flowing Well Road) 

 
Brenda Clark (21-035) has submitted an application to the Albany Dougherty Planning 
Commission requesting that the Official Zoning Map of Dougherty County be amended 
to rezone 62.538 acres from AG (Agricultural District) to R-G (Single-Family Residential 
District County Only). The property address is 512 Flowing Well Rd. The property owner 
is Southland Cypress, LLC; the applicant is Brenda Clark. (District 1) 
 
Helen Young offered a motion to approve the request to rezone 62.538 acres from AG to 
R-E as recommended by staff; seconded by Yvonne Jackson; the motion carried 6-0 with 
the following votes: 
 
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum 
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Absent 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes 
Aaron Johnson  Absent 
Charles Ochie  Absent 
Helen Young   Yes 
Heath Fountain   Yes 
 
 
 
 

58

Item 6b.



59

Item 6b.



60

Item 6b.



61

Item 6b.



62

Item 6b.



63

Item 6b.



64

Item 6b.



65

Item 6b.



66

Item 6b.



67

Item 6b.



68

Item 6b.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: August 5, 2021 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #21-036 Zoning (2700 Liberty Expressway) 

 
Metro Site, LLC (21-036) has submitted an application to the Albany Dougherty 
Planning Commission requesting Special Approval to construct a new 
telecommunications tower with a total overall height of facility 315’ in the C-3 
(Commercial) District & C-8 (Commercial Recreation District). The property is 
approximately 20.82 acres, and the property address is 2700 Liberty Expressway. The 
property owner is Grady Blair Stone; the applicant is Metro Site, LLC. (District 6) 
 
Art Brown offered a motion to recommend approval for the Special Approval to 
construct a new telecommunications tower with a total overall height of facility 315’ in 
the C-3 & C-8; seconded by Jimmy Hall; the motion carried 6-0 with the following 
votes:  
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum 
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Absent 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes 
Aaron Johnson  Absent 
Charles Ochie  Absent 
Helen Young   Yes 
Heath Fountain   Yes 
 
 
 
 

69

Item 6c.



70

Item 6c.



71

Item 6c.



72

Item 6c.



73

Item 6c.



74

Item 6c.



75

Item 6c.



76

Item 6c.



77

Item 6c.



78

Item 6c.



79

Item 6c.



80

Item 6c.



81

Item 6c.



82

Item 6c.



83

Item 6c.



84

Item 6c.



85

Item 6c.



86

Item 6c.



87

Item 6c.



88

Item 6c.



89

Item 6c.



90

Item 6c.



91

Item 6c.



92

Item 6c.



93

Item 6c.



94

Item 6c.



95

Item 6c.



96

Item 6c.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: August 5, 2021 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #21-037 Dougherty County Solar Ordinance Revision 

 
21-037 Dougherty County Solar Ordinance: recommendation of revisions to the 
Dougherty County Solar Ordinance (TITLE III, ARTICLE 1. Section 1.44. VII. Specific 
Requirements for Solar Energy Systems (A) i). The Planning Commissioners will decide 
whether or not to recommend the presented revisions to the Dougherty County Board 
of Commissioners.   
 

Billy Merritt offered a motion to approve staff recommendations for changes to the 

Solar Ordinance and be forwarded to the County Commission. Suggested changes 

are: 

• Minor edits 

• Allowing panels on street-facing roofs (permitted in City) 

• Allow fencing to be 6 feet with barbed wire (meets electrical code) 

The motion was seconded by Art Brown; the motion carried 6-0 with the following 
votes:  
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum 
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Absent 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes 
Aaron Johnson  Absent 
Charles Ochie  Absent 
Helen Young   Yes 
Heath Fountain   Yes 
 
 

97

Item 6d.



98

Item 6d.



99

Item 6d.



100

Item 6d.



101

Item 6d.



102

Item 6d.



103

Item 6d.



104

Item 6d.



105

Item 6d.



106

Item 6d.



107

Item 6d.



108

Item 7a.



109

Item 7a.



110

Item 7a.



111

Item 7b.



112

Item 7b.



113

Item 7b.


	Top
	Item 4a.	Minutes
	2021.07.19 Minutes Regular
	2021.07.26 Minutes Work

	Item 5d.	Delegation d_William Wright
	Delegation d_William Wright 1
	Delegation d_William Wright 2

	Item 6a.	Zoning a_Teramore Dev
	Zoning a_Recap (Teramore)
	Zoning a_Staff Report (Teramore)

	Item 6b.	Zoning b_B. Clark
	Zoning b_Recap (B Clark)
	Zoning b_Staff Report (B Clark)

	Item 6c.	Zoning c_Metro Site
	Zoning c_Recap (Metro Site)
	Zoning c_Staff Report (Metro Site)
	Zoning c_Partial site plan (Metro Site)

	Item 6d.	Zoning d_Solar Ordinance
	Zoning d_ Recap (County Solar Ordinance)
	Zoning d_ Staff Report (County Solar Ordinance)

	Item 7a.	Purchase a_Fleming Rd
	Purchase a_Fleming Road

	Item 7b.	Purchase b_Sirens
	Purchase b_Sirens

	Bottom

